
 
Planning Board 

Meeting Agenda 
 

July 21, 2020 at 7:00 PM 
Online Zoom Meeting- Details at bottom of agenda. 

Meeting Called to Order, Invocation, and Overview of Board and general meeting rules 
1. Approve minutes of the June 16, 2020 meeting 

 
2. Old Business 

 
a. CR2002 Riley’s Meadow. Application by Tony Tate for initiation of zoning for 77 acres off Jim 

Minor Road. GPINS 8893762882 and 8893856817. 
b. S2002 Riley’s Meadow. Application by Tony Tate for subdivision for 77 acres off Jim Minor 

Road. GPINS 8893762882 and 8893856817. 
 

3. New Business 
a. Planning Board Meeting Times 
b. 160D Update 

 
 

4. Public comment on non-agenda items 
Adjourn 

 
A complete agenda packet is available at www.cityofgraham.com 

 
Please click the link below to join the webinar:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85068802378?pwd=M2c5eDJwNW9xb1l3YWxMNS9VSXUzZz09 
Password: 484257 
 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
US: +16465588656,,85068802378# or +13017158592,,85068802378#  
Or Telephone: 
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):  
US: +1 646 558 8656 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 669 900 9128 or +1 253 215 8782 or 
+1 346 248 7799  
Webinar ID: 850 6880 2378 
International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdm37NnGSE 

http://www.cityofgraham.com/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85068802378?pwd=M2c5eDJwNW9xb1l3YWxMNS9VSXUzZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdm37NnGSE


  
 

PLANNING ZONING BOARD 
Tuesday, June 16, 2020 

 
The Planning & Zoning Board held their regular meeting on Tuesday, June 16, 2020 as an 
Online Zoom Meeting at 7:00 p.m.  Board members present were Dean Ward, Nate Perry, Eric 
Crissman, Bonnie Blalock and Justin Moody and Michael Benesch. Staff members present were 
Nathan Page and Debbie Jolly, Zoning and Inspection Technician. Chairman Ward called the 
meeting to order, gave the Overview of the Board, and general meeting rules. 
 

1.  Approval of the February 18, 2020 minutes. A motion was made to approve the minutes 
by Michael Benesch seconded by Nate Perry.  All voted in favor.                                                                                                                                                     

 
2. New Business 

               
                           

a.  RZ2003 Jimmy Kerr B-2. Application Kansith Sorsengihn for rezoning                      
from I-1 to B-2 for 7.55 (+/-) acres off Jimmy Kerr Road. GPIN  8894522701 
Nathan Page presented the project to the board. Kansith Sorsengihn gave a brief overview 
of the project, and answered questions from the board. No public comments were 
received. The board had a brief discussion about the project. Nate Perry made a motion to 
approve as presented, and the project is consistent with the Graham 2035 Compressive 
Plan. Seconded by Michael Benesch. All voted Aye. 
 

 
b. RZ2004 Rogers R-9. Application by Scott Wallace, Keystone Group for rezoning from 

R-18 to R-9 for approximately 35 acres on Darrel Drive and Council Road. GPIN 
8873608974. Nathan Page presented the project to the Planning Board.  Scott Wallace 
gave an overview of his project. He answered a few questions for the board. No public 
comments or questions. After the Planning Board discussion, Eric Crissman made a 
motion to approve as proposed as it is consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive 
Plan 3.3.2 and 4.3.1. Seconded by Nate Perry.  Vote was 6-1 Opposed by Bonnie 
Blalock. 

 
 

c. RZ2005 Service Road Light Industrial. Application by Phil Martin for rezoning from I-2 
to I-1 for 5.5 acres (+/-) on East Interstate Service Road. GPIN 8884402904. Mr. Ward 
and Mr. Moody stated they had done business with Mr. Martin and asked if they needed 
to be recused. The board voted against recusal. Mr. Page gave an overview of the project. 
Chad Huffines 505 E. Davis St spoke on behave of Mr. Martin and answered questions 
from the board about the project. Michael Benesch made a motion to approve as it was in 
line with the 2035 Comprehensive plan. Seconded by Nate Perry. All voted Aye. 

  
d. RZ2006 Hanson and Palmer Drive R-9. Application by Martin Shoffner for rezoning 

from R-12 to R-9 of 71 acres (+-) off Hanson and Palmer Drive. GPINS 8883100157, 
8883000530.  Nathan Page gave a summary of the request. Martin Shoffner presented the 



  
 

plan to the board. The board had several question for Mr. Shoffner. The following people 
spoke against the project. 
 

                 Larry Durham                    1904 Palmer Dr. 
                 Paul Smart                         556 Little Creek 
                 Joann Henry                      504 Grandview  
                 Jennifer Stokes                  139 Collonwood Dr. 
                 Steve Van Pelt                   580 Grandview Dr. 
                 Charlie Smith                     616 Whisper Ridge Rd. 
                 Cynthia Thompson            1904 Palmer Dr. 
                 Angela Parson                    506 Wildwood Ln. 
 
The board had a brief discussion on the project.  Mr. Crissman made a motion to approve as it is 
consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan 3.3.2, 3.2.4 and 4.3.1. seconded by Nate 
Perry. Vote was opposed 4-2 Dean Ward, Bonnie Blalock Michael Bensch and Justin Moody. 
Nathan Page asked if the Planning Board wanted to pass a different motion, but no other motion 
was made. The chair moved on to the next item on the agenda.                  
 
                  

e. CR2002 Riley’s Meadow. Application by Tony Tate for initiation of zoning for 77 acres 
off Jim Minor Road. GPINS 8893762882 and 8893856817. Nathan Page presented the 
project to the board. This is 77 acres with 398 units purposed, townhomes and single 
family homes.  Chris Rurkowski of 5011 S. Park Dr. gave an overview of his project. The 
following people spoke against it. 

                    
                  Scott Gollnick                        2001 Atlas Dr 
                  Anthony Pierce                       2009 Atlas Dr.  
                  Brent Gonet                            2033 Atlas Dr.  
                  Tina Pierce                              2009 Atlas Dr. 
                  Nathan Woody                        2065 Atlas Dr. 
                  Lindsey Roten                         2088 Atlas Dr.  
                  Stephen Roten                         2088 Atlas Dr. 
                  Wendy McElfresh                   2049 Atlas Dr. 
                  Janelle Woody                         2065 Atlas Dr.  
                  Don Freeman                           2025 Atlas. Dr. 
 
The board members had questions for Mr. Rurkowski and then had a brief discussion between 
themselves. They ask Mr. Rurkowski if he would look at the density and make the lots bigger 
boarding Atlas Dr. property. Michael Benesch made a motion to table this item until July 21st 
meeting. Seconded by Eric Crissman. All voted Aye. 
                    
                   
                    
 

f. S2002 Riley’s Meadow. Application by Tony Tate for subdivision for 77 acres off Jim 
Minor Road. GPINS 8893762882 and 8893856817. Dean Ward made a motion to table 



  
 

this item until next month meeting. Seconded by Bonnie Blalock. All voted aye.  
 
 
3. Public comment on non-agenda items. No public comments 
 
Michael Benesch made a motion to adjourn, Dean Ward seconded. All voted Aye.                
                                                                                                                                 
No further business the meeting was adjourned.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Debbie Jolly 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Nathan Page, Planning Director 

Riley’s Meadow (CR2002) 

Type of Request: Conditional Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on June 16, 2020 
City Council on July 14, 2020 

Contact Information 
Tony Tate, TMTLA Associates 
5011 Southpark Drive, Suite 200, Durham NC 
27713; 919‐484‐8880 
tony@tmtla.com 

Summary	
This is a request to initiate zoning upon the subject property as 
Conditional Residential. The proposed use of the property is for 393 
dwelling units, with a mixture of townhomes and single family 
detached units. While the site is within the identified NCCP, the 
location of the park and the existing residential density on Atlas Drive 
suggest that this location may be better served by residences than an 
industrial complex. 

Open space has been provided internal to the site, as well as to 
protect the wetlands and streams upon the site. This development is 
across the street from the Graham Regional Park, which has recently 
opened the second phase. 

 

 

Location 
Jim Minor Road 

GPIN 
8893762882, 8893856871 

Current Zoning 
unzoned 

Proposed Zoning 
Conditional Residential (CR) 

Overlay District 
none 

Surrounding Zoning 
unzoned, R‐18, I‐1 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family, Under Cultivation, 
Vacant, Distribution, City Park 

Size 
Approximately 77 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
To Be Extended by Developer 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval 



Staff Report, Riley’s Meadow (CR2002)  Page 2 of 3 
Planning Board on June 16, 2019 

 

Technical	Review	Committee	

The Technical Review Committee reviewed the application and provided comments to the applicant via 
the Planning Director. As of the publishing of this agenda packet, the applicant had not responded to the 
comments. There are substantial required revisions to the plans, which may result in the loss of a few 
units for stormwater control, but would not require a new roadway be constructed. 

Conformity	to	the	Graham	2035	Comprehensive	Plan	(GCP)	and	Other	Adopted	Plans	

Applicable Policies; 

 3.2.4 Greenway System. Promote a greenway system that 
links together the City’s recreational resources and provides 
connections to commercial, employment, and residential 
areas. Greenways along stream buffers should be prioritized 
in order to protect the stream watershed. This neighborhood 
is across Jim Minor Road from our largest park, and could 
include a crosswalk to the park, if it is an amenity the City 
Council desires. 

 3.3.2 Focused Development. In order to maintain Graham’s 
affordability and promote growth, the city will facilitate smart 
growth development by promoting infill development and 
focused, walkable, and mixed use built environments. The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan expects a continuation of 
the Interchange Regional Node to develop within the half‐mile 
walkable radius of this neighborhood. 

 5.1.1 Housing Variety. Encourage a mix of housing types 
within Graham to increase choice. These can include single 
family dwellings units, multifamily dwelling units, small units, pre‐fabricated homes, co‐housing and 
clustered housing. This project would construct additional townhomes, as well as single‐family‐
detached to increase housing choice in Graham. 

 5.2.1 Diverse Neighborhoods. Encourage a mix of housing types within Graham, including detached, 
duplex, multifamily, townhomes, and live‐work units. The proposed zoning would allow for both 
townhomes and single‐family‐detached in the same neighborhood. 

Applicable Strategies; 

 1.1.2 Design Guidelines. Develop commercial and residential site design guidelines that enhance 
community character and appearance, to be used with special use permits and conditional rezoning 
applications. While the City doesn’t have design guidelines, they could be required as a condition of 
approval. 

 4.2.1 Greenways. Continue to develop a greenway system that links together the City’s recreational 
resources. This neighborhood has the potential to have easy access to Graham’s largest park. 

 4.3.1 Land Use Patterns. Promote development of efficient land use patterns to allow continued 
quality and efficiency of water systems. Discourage the extension of water service into areas that 

Planning Type 
Employment District 

Development Type 
The employment district should 
be studied and planned in order 
to accommodate a range of 
employers, and provide office 

space, industrial space, 
commercial space, institutional 
space, and residential housing. 
This should be planned to limit 
environmental impacts, preserve 
open space and open corridors, 
and develop high ‐quality and 

adaptable buildings for a variety 
of companies. 

Density of 6 DU/acre



Staff Report, Riley’s Meadow (CR2002)  Page 3 of 3 
Planning Board on June 16, 2019 

are not most suitable for development.  The site would connect to existing city sewer and water with 
only a short extension. 

 

Staff	Recommendation	
Based on The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, staff 
recommends approval of the rezoning. The following supports this recommendation: 

 Rezoning the property would be in consistence with Policy 3.2.4, 5.2.1, and Strategy 4.3.1 of The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: F2BFEB0D-8AD2-4C75-9082-D100D6AB5749

5/19/2020 | 8:24 PM CDT5/19/2020 | 8:23 PM CDT

DocuSign Envelope ID: F84E2072-2857-47D8-B77F-F4C3F9333BFD

approximately 393 total units.













PLANNING	BOARD	
Recommendation	&	Statement	of	Consistency	

Per NCGS 160A‐383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with “The Graham 2035 
Comprehensive Plan” and any other officially adopted plan that is 
applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written recommendation 
to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and other matters as 
deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the 
Planning Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with “The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the City Council. 

 

  I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

  I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following conditions: 

 A pedestrian crossing to the City’s park be provided across Jim Minor Road. 

 Sewer, with sufficient depth to serve 10’ in on the South side of the road through gravity, is 
provided at one of the two street stubs, but is not necessary along the street frontage of Jim 
Minor Road. 

 A waterline connection is installed across Jim Minor Road, but is not required to be carried along 
the street frontage of the property. 

  I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
  The application is consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

  The application is not fully consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The action is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons:  

_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 16th day of June, 2020. 

Attest: 

   
Dean Ward, Planning Board Chairman 

   
Debbie Jolly, Secretary 

Riley’s Meadow (CR2002) 

Type of Request 
Conditional Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on June 16, 2020 
City Council on July 14, 2020 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Nathan Page, Planning Director  

Riley’s Meadow (S2002) 

Type of Request: Major Subdivision 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on June 16, 2020 
City Council on July 14, 2020 

 
Contact Information 
Tony Tate, TMTLA Associates 
5011 Southpark Drive, Suite 200, Durham NC 
27713; 919‐484‐8880 
tony@tmtla.com 

Summary	
This is a request to subdivide the approximately 77 acres of the subject 
property for up to 393 residential lots. The properties are currently 
vacant.  

Technical	Review	Committee	

The Technical Review Committee reviewed the application and provided comments to the applicant via 
the Planning Director. As of the publishing of this agenda packet, the applicant had not responded to the 
comments. There are substantial required revisions to the plans, but they do not affect the number of 
proposed lots, nor the access points from Jim Minor Road. 
   

Location 
Wildwood Lane and Parham Drive

GPIN 
8893762882 and 8893856871 

Zoning 
unzoned 

Overlay District 
none 

Surrounding Zoning 
R‐18, unzoned 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family, Park, Industrial, and 

Vacant 

Size 
Approximately 77 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
In the vicinity 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval 



Staff Report, Riley’s Meadow (S2002)  Page 3 of 3 
Planning Board on July 16, 2020 

Conformity	to	The	Graham	2035	Comprehensive	Plan	
and	Other	Adopted	Plans	

Applicable Strategies and Policies 

 Policy 3.2.3 Fewer Dead‐end Streets Discourage or prohibit the 
development of cul‐de‐sacs and dead‐end streets in new 
projects. This proposal permits redundant access to all but a few 
lots. 

 Policy 3.2.4 Greenway System Promote a greenway system that 
links together the City’s recreational resources and provides 
connections to commercial, employment, and residential areas. 
Greenways along stream buffers should be prioritized in order 
to protect the stream watershed. This parcel contains land that 
a pedestrian easement will be required as a condition of TRC 
approval to connect to the NCCP, and eventually the Haw River 
Trail.  

 Strategy 4.2.1 Greenways Continue to develop a greenway 
system that links together the City’s recreational resources. 
Alamance County Parks and Recreation is attempting to link 
many of these neighborhoods with the Haw River Trail. 

Policy 4.3.1 Land Use Patterns Promote development of efficient land use patterns to allow 
continued quality and efficiency of water systems. Discourage the extension of water service into 
areas that are not most suitable for development. This proposal keeps almost all of the development 
out of the floodplains, and will bring water and sewer infrastructure close to the City of Graham’s 
park. 

	

Staff	Recommendation	
 
Based on The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, staff 
recommends approval of the subdivision. 
 
The following supports this recommendation: 

Allowing a subdivision in this location removes households from the potential harm from floodways 
(Policy 4.3.1), and protects greenspace (3.2.4) and promotes a greenway trail system (4.2.1). 

Development Type 
Employment District 

The employment district should 
be studied and planned in order 
to accommodate a range of 
employers and provide office 

space, industrial space, 
commercial space, institutional 
space, and residential housing. 
This should be planned to limit 
environmental impacts, preserve 
open space and open corridors, 
and develop high‐quality and 

adaptable buildings for a variety 
of companies. 

Appropriate Density: 6 dwelling 
units per acre 





PLANNING	BOARD	
Recommendation	&	Statement	of	Consistency	

Per NCGS 160A‐383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with “The Graham 2035 
Comprehensive Plan” and any other officially adopted plan that is 
applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written recommendation 
to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and other matters as 
deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the 
Planning Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with “The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the City Council. 

 

  I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

  I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following condition(s); 

 [Insert additional comments] 

  I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
  The application is consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

  The application is not fully consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The action is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons:  

__________________________________________________
__________________________________________________
_________________________________________________ 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 16th day of June 2020. 

Attest: 

   
Dean Ward, Planning Board Chairman 

   
Debbie Jolly, Secretary 

Riley’s Meadow 
(S2002) 

Type of Request 
Major Subdivision 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on June 16, 2020 
City Council on July 14, 2019 


	PBagenda_20200721
	Planning Board
	Meeting Agenda

	june 16 2020 PZ minutes DRAFT
	PB_AgendaPacket_Jun2020
	PBagenda_20200616
	Feb 18 2020 PZ minutes DRAFT
	RZ2003_Staffreport
	RZ2003_app
	RZ2003_PBRec
	1_staffreport_RZ2004
	RZ2004_application
	RZ2004_PBRec
	RZ2005_Staffreport
	RZ2005_app
	RZ2005_PBRec
	1_staffreport_RZ2006
	RZ2006_app
	RZ2006_sketch
	RZ2006_PBRec
	1_CR2002_staffreport
	CR2002_app
	8_CR2002_PBRec
	1_S2002_Staff Report
	S2002_app
	S2002_PBRec




